





Council of Governors

At 14:50 on 21st September 2021 Via video conferencing

Part 2 – Held in Public

Ref	Title of item	Format	Presented by	Time
	Formal Business			
Committee	Governance			
21/22/26	Welcome, apologies and quoracy	Verbal		
21/22/27	Declarations of interest	Verbai		
21/22/28	Meeting Guidelines			14:50
21/22/29	Minutes of the previous meeting 22 nd June 2021		Chair	(5 mins)
21/22/30	Matters arising & action points	Paper		,
21/22/31	2021/22 Business Cycle			
Chair, Chie	f Executive and Lead Governor Announcements			
21/22/32	Chair's Announcements	Verbal	Chair	14:55 (5 mins)
21/22/33	Chief Executive's Announcements	Verbal	Chief Executive	15:00 (10 mins)
21/22/34	Lead Governor Announcements	Verbal	Lead Governor	15:10 (5 mins)
Reports fro	m Council of Governors Sub-committees			
	 Minutes of Membership and Development Sub-Committee meeting held <i>no meetings held since last Council of Governors</i> 		Sub-Committee Chairs	15:15
21/22/35	 Minutes of the Scrutiny Sub-Committee meeting held: no meetings held since last Council of Governors 	Paper / Verbal		(5 mins)
	Minutes of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting held:		SID / Lead Governor	

Helping people to be **the best they can be**

Ref	Title of item	Format	Presented by	Time
	• 29 th June, 19 th August and 2 nd September 2021			
Trust Updat	ies	-		
21/22/36	COVID-19 Update	Paper	Director of Operations	15:20 (15 mins)
21/22/37	Financial Regime / Operational Planning – 21/22 - Update	Verbal	Director of Business and Value / NEDs	15:35 (10 mins)
	Break 15:45 – 15:55 (10 mir	is)		
Items for Di	scussion and Approval			
21/22/38	NED Recruitment Update	Verbal	Head of Corporate Affairs	15:55 (5 mins)
21/22/39	Annual Election Update	Verbal	Head of Corporate Affairs	16:00 (5 mins)
21/22/40	Annual Members Meeting / Annual Report and Accounts 20/21	Verbal	Head of Corporate Affairs	16:05 (5 mins)
Governor Q	uestions and feedback			
21/22/41	Governor Question Time	Verbal	All	16:10 (10 mins)
21/22/42	Governor Shared Learning Training / Governor Forums 	Verbal	All	16:20 (10 mins)
Closing Bus	siness			
21/22/43	Any other business			
21/22/44	Review risk impact of items discussed		Ch air/	10.00
21/22/45	Evaluate the effectiveness of the last meeting	Verbal	Chair/ All	16:30
21/22/46	Review the effectiveness of today's meeting https://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/meetingeffectivenesssurvey/			(5 mins)
	CLOSE 16:35			
Date, time and venue of the next meeting & venue TBC				

Version No	1	Date issued	C	l

Helping people to be **the best they can be**

Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

DRAFT Minutes of Council of Governors Meeting

At 14:00 on Tuesday 22 June 2021 Via Video Conferencing

Present	Andrea Campbell, Non-Executive Director and Deputy Chair (Chair)
	Mike Maier, Chairman
	Brian Crouch, Service User Carer Governor (Lead Governor)
	Richard Agar, Wirral Public Governor
	Kevin Bradburne, Cheshire West & Chester Public Governor
	David Bull, Service User/ Carer Governor
	Gus Cairns, Service User/ Carer Governor
	Ken Edwards, Staff Governor
	Gareth Gould, Cheshire West & Cheshire Council Appointed Governor
	Lisa Hulmes, Staff Governor
	Phil Jarrold, Service User/ Carer Governor
	Elaine Marsh, Service User/ Carer Governor
	Rob Robertson, Service User/ Carer Governor
	Tim Seabrooke, Service User/ Carer Governor
	Iain Stewart, Partnership Governors
	Rob Walker, East Cheshire Public Governor
In	Sheena Cumiskey, Chief Executive
attendance	Rebecca Burke-Sharples, Non-Executive Director
	Suzanne Edwards, Director of Operations
	David Harris, Director of People and Organisational Development
	Elizabeth Harrison, Non-Executive Director
	Tim Welch, Director of Business and Value
	Suzanne Christopher, Head of Corporate Affairs
	Samantha Scholes, Governance Officer (minutes)
Apologies	Deepak Angihotri, Staff Governor
	Peter Ashley-Mudie, Service User Carer Governor
	Sean Boyle, Appointed Governor
	Andy Corkhill, Partnership Governor
	Beverley Greenwood, Service User/ Carer Governor
	Ferguson McQuarrie, Service User/ Carer Governor
	Helen Nellist, Public Governor
	Alice Smith, Service User Carer/ Governor
	Paul Taylor, Out of Area Public Governor
	Gill Thompson, Staff Governor
	Jennette Wilne, Staff Governor

Ref	Title of item	Action
	Meeting governance	
21/22/1	 Welcome, apologies and quoracy The Deputy Chair welcomed all Governors to the meeting and stated that she would be chairing on this occasion to comply with the Trust Constitution that the deputy chair is required to Chair the Council of Governors meeting at least once a year. Attendees were encouraged to raise a hand if they wished to ask a question, rather than utilise the chat box. This would allow questions to be responded to accordingly. If an answer was not available, a response would be provided outside of the meeting. 	

Ref	Title of item	Action
	Apologies were noted as above. The meeting was confirmed to be quorate.	
21/22/2	Declarations of interest . G Gould as Councillor for Chester and West Cheshire Council declared that Grant Thornton, Trust Auditors also sat on the Council Pension Fund.	
21/22/3	Meeting Guidelines The meeting guidelines were noted .	
21/22/4	Minutes of the previous meeting The minutes of the meeting held on the 10th March 2021 were reviewed and agreed as an accurate record.	
21/22/5	Matters arising & action points All action points were reviewed and the Council agreed to closed them as all had been fulfilled.	
21/22/6	Business Cycle: 2021/22S Christopher identified that review of policies and constitution work was on hold as the Membership & Development sub-committee had not met for some time, in line with Guidance issued by NHSE/I. This work would be progressed as soon as possible.The business cycle for 2021/22 was noted.	
	Trust Updates	
21/22/7	Chair's Announcements Vaccination centre move to Ellesmere Port The Deputy Chair was pleased to report that the Mass Vaccination Centre had moved from Chester Racecourse to Ellesmere Port Civic Hall and its first day of operation was 21 June. The move came as part of phase 2 of the COVID-19 vaccination programme in Cheshire West. The Trust was working closely with health partners to support local areas and ensure equitable uptake of vaccines. The site has extensive transport links and will provide an accessible, convenient location for people to get their vaccine when they are invited to do so. Pop up vaccination clinics Over the past week the Trust had very positive news coverage both on radio and TV in response to our pop-up vaccination clinics. Suzanne Edwards, Director of Operations, appeared on Dee Radio 106 last week to promote the excellent work of the pop-up vaccination clinics and to encourage people in Cheshire to attend if they met the eligibility criteria. New text messaging service launched for Cheshire and Merseyside Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership had teamed up with mental health charity 'Shout 85258' to provide a free text messaging service in the region. The service aimed to support the existing mental health crisis lines in operation from CWP, Mersey Care and Alder Hey.	

Ref	Title of item	Action
	For many people with a learning disability and their families, getting creative had been a way to stay connected and positive through the challenges of last year. For learning Disability Week 2021 (14-20 June) we celebrated that art and creativity by sharing a number of things our learning disability colleagues and service users had been doing lately, including the launch of a bereavement and grief guide to support children with severe learning disabilities and a number of creative MS Teams backgrounds designed by people who accessed our services. These can be found on our Twitter account @cwpnhs under the hashtag #LDWeek2021 The Council of Governors noted the update.	
21/22/8	Chief Executive Announcements	
	S Cumiskey introduced herself and stated her pronouns were 'she and hers'.	
	She outlined the design framework on the recently received ICS guidance and how it applied locally. In Cheshire & Merseyside (C&M) the ICS would encompass the whole of the population and the nine CCGs would cease to exist as entities and be replaced by the ICS on 1 April 2022. All functions would transfer from the CCGs into the ICS who would be responsible for these.	
	It would also be responsible regionally for issues such as the People Plan and funding flows would be in two parts both statutory and include the framework. This would be a Partnership Board and bring together all partners required to truly improve outcomes for the people of C&M and have a population health approach.	
	She added that the nine Places would be co-terminus with local authority boundaries. It would connect with people and their communities and the local authority, third sector etc. would come alongside people to help them be the best they can and focus in different way and carefully consider how to make a difference to the lives of people and their outcomes. A lot of work would happen in each of the places to understand the framework of what is required and how they would come together. The guidance was permissive about how things need to be done with the importance on Places determining how it works to be most effective. Local people would make local decisions.	
	Provider Collaboratives were already in place and the Trust was already part of the Lead Provider Collaborative which had delegation of specialised commissioning from NHSE. Both the NHS and the independent sector would come together to provide care and manage the budget to provide this. This enabled a different approach for secure leads (led by Mersey Care, known as Prospect), complex community or inpatient care (led by CWP) and for people with complex eating disorders (led by Cheshire and Wirral and NW England).	
	Providers would come together to look at C&M standardisation of care with good pathways to reduce variation including workforce and how care would be organised across a wider population. The Trust was part of wider collaboration across C&M and worked into Places along with the local authority, acute trusts, third sector etc. She concluded that she would continue to update the Council on progress and how this was taken forwards with a more detailed presentation at a future CoG.	
	R Walker asked how quantifiable outcomes would be relayed to the	

Ref	Title of item	Action
	public in a simple to understand manner. S Cumiskey responded that this was an ongoing piece of work with the local Health Care Partnership (HCP) currently setting out plans to improve and consider how this was developed and measured and a similar process was taking place across all nine Places. CWP as part of the Lead Provider Collaborative (LPC) had deep involvement of lived experience including Children and Young People (CYP) and Adult Eating Disorders (AED) and was working alongside them to develop outcome measures.	
	The Deputy Chair added that the difference seen would be evidenced in what would happen in local care community groups which are being developed in each Primary Care Network.	
	E Marsh queried the standardisation of services and asked how this may affect management structures. She suggested that continuity of staffing may be a challenge and asked how staff felt about this. S Cumiskey agreed that it would be a big change and a workstream of the development of the ICS was to come alongside those staff and work with them and ensure knowledge and expertise was maintained. The finer detail was not available as this was work in progress.	
04/00/0	The Council of Governors noted the update.	
21/22/9	Lead Governor Update	
	B Crouch, Lead Governor introduced himself and detailed that some amendment to the Council of Governors had occurred since the last meeting.	
	He welcomed Chris French as a Partnership Governor from the University of Liverpool. Unfortunately, a number of Governors had recently chosen to leave the Council due to unforeseen personal circumstances, including Martin Curran, Staff Governor, Roy Cartlidge, Public Governor East Cheshire and Anne Farrell, Public Governor for Wirral. B Crouch wished them all well and thanked them, particularly Anne for the support she had given him over the last few years as Deputy Lead Governor.	
	At today's meeting, and in future sessions a number of the items would be led by NED colleagues. He encouraged Governors to ask questions by way of assurance and to direct these to NED colleagues wherever possible.	
	The Deputy Chair added her thanks to the outgoing governors and noted the support A Farrell had given.	
	The Council of Governors noted the updates.	
	Reports from Council of Governors Sub-committees and feedback on governor activity	
21/22/10	Minutes of Membership and Development Sub committee No meetings held since last Council of Governors	
	Minutes of Scrutiny Sub Committee No meetings held since last Council of Governors	
	Minutes of Council of Governors Nominations & Remuneration Committee – 22 nd March 2021 & 9 th June 2021	
	M Maier, Chair stated that the committee had considered activity undertaken by NEDs, NED tenures and the proposal to extend the term	

Ref	Title of item	Action
	of Rebecca Burke-Sharples and carefully considered the Chair's Recruitment process, all of which formed part of this Council of Governors agenda.	
	The Council of Governors noted the update.	
21/22/11	Financial Regime / Operational Planning – 21/22 – Update	
	T Welch, Director of Business and Value presented an update to the Council regarding the financial regime; summarising the processes for 2020/21 and outlining the plans for the start of 2021/22.	
	Governors were invited to ask questions of the Non-Executive Directors regarding the processes to date and the forward plans.	
	T Welch went on to consider the audit process for 2020/21, reminding the Council of governors of the Trust's External Auditors, Grant Thornton. Further to this years audit process being finalised, Grant Thornton would attend the Council of Governors to present the findings. E Jenner as Chair of the Audit Committee assured the Council that the audit findings to date were assuring.	
	C French asked how NEDs worked with Execs to look beyond the coming 12 months to successfully commission and assure continuity of services. T Welch responded that resources were considered annually. Mental Health Investment and Service Development monies were recurrent and therefore the future could be planned for with some certainty. A spending review was taking place which it was anticipated would see arrangements conclude later in this year.	
	The Deputy Chair added that under the framework of the ICSs the new system would be able to ensure continuity for services and less non-recurrent spending should occur which was a helpful development.	
	The Council of Governors noted the update.	
21/22/12	COVID 19 Update	
	S Edwards introduced the item.	
	Dr Alam provided an update regarding the staff vaccination programme and assurance regarding any potential risks relating to staff who had not yet received the vaccination.	
	It was noted that community infections rates continue to rise. The Trust would continue with its efforts to ensure all possible staff are vaccinated and alongside that continue the lateral flow testing processes of staff undertaking the tests twice a week.	
	It was also noted that the Government were planning an inquiry into the COVID-19 pandemic response. Assurance was provided that the Trust had already started preparations in respect of this.	
	Governors were appraised of the use of Emergency Powers in accordance with the Trust constitution to agree the opening of the Mass Vaccination site in Chester and its later move to the Civic Centre in Ellesmere Port. Both decisions were later ratified at the next available Board of Directors meetings. Non-Executive colleagues confirmed that	

Ref	litle of item	Action
	in both cases, appropriate steps were taken to ensure assurance was received.	
	R Walker queried the impact working from home had had on the Trust's financial and carbon footprint. S Edwards confirmed that mileage claims had reduced along with a decrease in the number of premises being used. The use of virtual meetings and blended training had contributed to that.	
	K Edwards queried the safety of staff and patients if some staff had not yet received their vaccination. S Edwards confirmed that regular communication was maintained with staff and a variety of support was being offered both at a general level and individual level. Booking systems were being utilised and rates monitored with clear targets. At present 92.5% of staff across Trust had received their first vaccination. The remaining 3% were either pregnant or had medical reasons. A health and wellbeing blended approach was being taken and would continue to be provided. E Harrison assured the Governors that the NEDs had explored this area in detail with Executive Colleagues. She also acknowledged the huge amount of work that had taken place within the Trust.	
	The Trust would continue to provide support and opportunities for vaccination. For staff who had not been vaccinated, measures had been implemented including individual risk assessments. Lateral Flow Tests were undertaken twice weekly and were available from various sites and infection prevention control measures continue to be implemented. She added that the plan was continually being reviewed and assured the Council of its efficacy.	
	Governors also commented on the well-being of staff, the available resources to staff the vaccination clinics, and the timeliness of recruitment processes. S Edwards confirmed that CWP continued to work with partners to ensure staff were recruited and able to volunteer from a number of host organisations.	
	P Jarrold commented on the impact of COVID to effectively communicate with Service Users and the Public. There was a real lack of understanding on ICS and Provider Collaboratives etc which may impact on their care and that clarity was needed sooner rather than later. It was noted that the future landscape is unclear and information would be shared with Governors at future Council sessions. However, assurance was provided that the aim is to enhance the experience of service users through joint working and collaboration.	
	The Council of Governors noted the update.	
21/22/13	The Chair and Deputy Chair left the meeting Chair's Recruitment	
	B Crouch assumed the role of Chair and introduced the item as M Maier and A Campbell left the meeting.	
	R Burke-Sharples introduced herself as the Senior Independent Director and outlined her role in supporting the Governors in the process to appoint a new Chairperson as an independent advisor.	
	She thanked members of the Nominations & Remuneration Committee who had met on 9 June 2021. At their meeting, they considered the	

Ref	Title of item	Action
	process to be followed for the appointment of a new Chair and considered a number of search agencies that could support that process.	
	R Burke-Sharples reminded the Council that M Maier had been in post as Chair since 2016 and had also been a NED prior to that. At a previous meeting, CoG had agreed a smooth transition from the outgoing Chair to the new Chair, with M Maier's final year being one of a transition.	
	The importance of making the right appointment was stressed to the Council, with this being a significant responsibility of the Council to appoint the Trust's Chair. The responsibility to lead this process is devolved by the Council to the Nominations & Remuneration Committee.	
	The Nomination and Remuneration Committee members proposed the appointment of the recruitment firm Gatenby Sanderson. Gatenby Sanderson had previously undertaken the process of delivering a number of successful appointments for the Trust.	
	Key attributes of a new Chair were also being sought from members of the Nomination ad Remuneration Committee as well as members of the Board of Directors.	
	The paper provided to the Council included a proposed timetable for the process, which would be undertaken during the summer period and conclude in September. The preferred candidate would be proposed to the Council of Governors at your meeting in September 2021.	
	R Burke-Sharples reiterated that her role, alongside the Chief Executive, would be to offer support and advice to the process. In addition to this, an independent chair would also be invited to be part of the formal interview panel to ensure the process was fair and equitable for all candidates. R Burke-Sharples assured the Council that she would not be applying for the role and would remain entirely independent.	
	B Crouch thanked R Burke-Sharples and stated he was happy with the considered process.	
	C French commented that the process was clear. He confirmed that he had had experience of Gatenby Sanderson within his own work and assured the Council of their skills and professionalism. He sought assurance from committee members regarding their selection.	
	K Edwards confirmed as a member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee that the choice of provider was broad and varied. He confirmed that he felt the process to consider providers was fair and equal. All members had similar ideas and had come to the same conclusion.	
	R Robertson, also as a committee member, added that he had been involved with the committee when appointing the existing Chair. He considered it would be helpful for Governors to better understand the work of the committee.	
	S Christopher confirmed that a session to discuss each of the sub- committees of the Council of Governors was being planned and would include the Nomination and Remuneration committee.	
	The Council of Governors approved the recommendations.	

Ref	Title of item	Action
	The Deputy Chair returned to the meeting	
21/22/14	Chair's Appraisal	
	R Burke-Sharples detailed the requirement from NHSEI to undertake the appraisal of the Chair in a relatively short time frame since the last appraisal (concluded December 2020). This would allow Chair's appraisals to fall in line with end of year processes.	
	She detailed the appraisal process, the progress against the Chair's objectives set at the last appraisal, the strengths and opportunities identified and the new objectives as part of the Chair's transitional year.	
	She outlined that the refresh of the Trust's Strategy had demonstrated how the Chair had driven the development and culture of the Trust and also of the Unitary Board. R Burke-Sharples gave a summary of the chairs performance and the feedback that was provided by key stakeholders who contributed to this assessment. These skills and attributes would also inform the requirements in the recruitment of the new Chair.	
	R Burke-Sharples reflected personally and stated that M Maier is one of the finest Chairs she had had the privilege to work with. He is both self- deprecating with a strong leadership style as evidenced through his work with the Board.	
	B Crouch added that he had always found M Maier direct, open, honest and trustworthy. He makes himself available when needed and it is a pleasure working with him.	
	P Ashley-Mudie endorsed R Burke-Sharples comments, stating that he had been with the Trust for a while and that M Maier is the best Chair and has a lovely way.	
	The Council of Governors noted the presentation.	
	M Maier returned to the meeting R Burke-Sharples left the meeting	
21/22/15	Non-Executive Director – NED Extension	
	The Deputy Chair introduced the item to consider a one-year extension for NED Rebecca Burke Sharples. R Burke-Sharples had indicated her willingness to remain in post subject to approval by the Council of Governors.	
	This matter had recently been considered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Council of Governors who had carefully considered R Burke-Sharples continued independence in this role and a number of factors to support a one year extension. The Deputy Chair stated that the independence of all NEDs was a serious matter and it was important that they remained so.	
	The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had concluded that R Burke-Sharples satisfied the criteria of independence and recommended a second and final years extension.	
	The Council of Governors approved the extension.	
	R Burke-Sharples returned to the meeting	
21/22/16	Annual Election Planning	

Ref	Title of item	Action
	S Christopher outlined the plan which had commenced with inviting	Action
	quotes from organisations to assist with the process. The timetable	
	would be defined in conjunction with the appointed organisation and this	
	would be shared with the Council as soon as this was finalised. Both	
	members of the Membership and Development Sub-Committee and the	
	Council would be kept informed of development.	
	All Governors whose tenure was due to end would be contacted to advise	
	if they wished to reapply to the role.	
	The Council of Governors noted the update.	
21/22/17	Review of Register of Conflicts of Interest for Governors	
	The Deputy Chair presented the item and thanked Governors for their	
	declarations which were included on the Trust's website as required.	
	The Council of Governors noted the update.	
	NED activity Feedback	
21/22/18	Individual NED Update	
	E Hamison NED istandared have lift to the Oscial in a discribing different	
	E Harrison, NED introduced herself to the Council and outlined her	
	experience and background.	
	E Harrison outlined her coreer to date working in a worldte of	
	E Harrison outlined her career to date, working in a variety of	
	organisations, including the Housing Association. Although her	
	knowledge of the NHS was limited when applying for this role, there were	
	commonalities between the work she had been involved in and the work	
	that the Trust supports.	
	Since joining the Trust on 1 October 2020, in the midet of the nondemia	
	Since joining the Trust on 1 October 2020, in the midst of the pandemic,	
	she had learned huge amounts. She thanked her mentor, Paul Bowen,	
	and the other NEDs for their support. Her induction had been tailored to	
	her own needs and provided a wealth of information that she could	
	explore at her own pace and according to her interest. She had also	
	participated in the NHS Providers NED induction.	
	Opportunities for shadowing had been provided including Quality	
	Committee, Consultant Interviews and Independent Review Panels. She	
	had chaired a HR Appeal panel and would do so again shortly.	
	$\frac{1}{2}$	
	She added that on her first day she had met with colleagues to consider	
	the Trust's strategy which was a pivotal opportunity and she thanked D	
	Harris and A Sivananthan for helping her understand the nuances.	
	She had joined Audit Committee to ensure value for money was being	
	scrutinised along with the efficiency of process, doing the right thing	
	safely and making the best use of available resources.	
	There had been challenges which had included not meeting any of the	
	Council of Governors and other colleagues apart from virtually and she	
	hoped that it would be possible to do so face to face soon.	
	She wanted to achieve getting out to visit services and look at their	
	challenges and successes, including how geography was playing a role	
	in this and to help people live their lives in the best way they can.	
	The Deputy Chair thanked E Harrison and stated on behalf of all her NED	
	colleagues that she had been a great addition to team and brought	
	invaluable skills and challenge.	
l		

Ref	Title of item	Action		
	The Coupeil of Covernors noted the undete			
	The Council of Governors noted the update. Governor Questions and feedback			
21/22/19	Governors Question Time			
21/22/10				
	No questions had been received prior to the Council of Governors meeting.			
21/22/20	Governor Shared Learning, Training / Governor Forums			
	None.			
21/22/21	Imagining the Future (ITF)/ Community Transformation programme			
	S Cumiskey outlined the context of the presentation, which was a refresh of the Trust's strategy, known as Imagining the Future (ITF).			
	The eight strategic objectives had been refreshed and were detailed in the paper and she shared that the next piece of work would be to engage with partners to further develop and deliver the plans. Partners would include Governors, Service Users and communities who would help to inform the strategy which would be finalised in December 2021. Additionally, the Integrated Care System (ICS) which would be in place from 1 April 2022 would influence the direction of travel.			
	The Deputy Chair asked the Council to consider what one thing would make the most difference to make the strategy real and alive locally and relevant for people who need services.			
	G Cairns requested that local partner Chairs be included in the engagement process.			
	K Edwards stated that he would welcome a close examination of skills mapping for staff to which S Edwards agreed this would be appropriate and partner organisations would do the same.			
	T Seabrook requested that information on the ICS be posted on the Governor's Forum for discussion.	SS		
	The Council of Governors noted the update.			
	Closing Business			
21/22/22	Any other business None			
21/22/23	Review risk impact of items discussed			
	None			
21/22/24	Evaluation of meeting effectiveness			
0.1/20/2=	The meeting was considered effective.			
21/22/25	Review the effectiveness of today's meeting			
	https://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/meetingeffectivenesssurvey/ CLOSE			
Date, time and venue of the next meeting:				
– venue TE				

Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Open Actions Action Schedule

		Action Log: Council of Governors				
Meeting date	Group/ Ref	Action	Update	By Whom	By when	Status
22.01.2020	19/20/75	Working group to be set up to review policies	Corporate Affairs team are looking at a date for this. On hold due to Covid- 19	Corporate Affairs Team	ASAP	Ongoing
10.03.2021	20/21/80	Share Terms of Reference with the Council of Governors.	Sent	Corporate Affairs Team	ASAP	Propose Close
10.03.2021	20/21/80a	Session to be arranged to outline the role of the sub-committees in detail to the Council	Session being arranged	Corporate Affairs Team		Propose Close
10.03.2021	20/21/84	NHS Structure and Recent White Paper presentation to be shared with Council of Governors	Sent	Corporate Affairs Team	ASAP	Propose Close





Council of Governors Business Cycle 2021/22

How	Lord	Coone	Lue	0.00	Dee	Мок
Item	Lead	Scope	Jun	Sep	Dec	Mar
Announcements: Chair / Chief Executive / Lead Governor	Chair Chief Executive Lead Governor	To update the CoG on any issues or developments affecting the Trust	\checkmark	~	\checkmark	\checkmark
2021/22 Business Cycle	Chair	To Note	\checkmark	 ✓ 	\checkmark	\checkmark
Action Schedule	Chair	To provide updates in respect of actions not elsewhere on the agenda, to ensure progress.	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	~
Receive CoG Annual Report 2019	Head of Corporate Affairs	To review the work of council, the business cycle, the effectiveness of meetings and Governors attendance at meetings.			\checkmark	
Receive minutes of the Scrutiny subcommittee	Chair of subcommittee	To review the work of the committee and for matters to be escalated to CoG as appropriate.	\checkmark	~	\checkmark	\checkmark
Receive minutes of the Membership and Development subcommittee	Chair of subcommittee	To review the work of the committee and for matters to be escalated to CoG as appropriate.	\checkmark	√	\checkmark	~
Receive minutes of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee	Chair	To review the work of the committee and for matters to be escalated to CoG as appropriate.	\checkmark	√	\checkmark	~
Board of Director to Council of Governor meeting	Chair	To be held annually.			\checkmark	
Governor Q&A sessions	Chair	Opportunity for Governors to feedback to the full Council and to present questions or make comment.	✓	✓	√	✓
Operational Plan 2021-2022 submission	Director of Finance	For Governors to have an overview and an opportunity to influence	\checkmark			

Helping people to be **the best they can be**

Page **1** of **2**

Item	Lead	Scope	Jun	Sep	Dec	Mar
		the Trust plans.				
CWP forward view planning	Director of Finance	For Governors to have an overview and an opportunity to influence the Trust plans.	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	~
Receive the Trust's Annual Accounts and Auditor reports on them and the Annual Report 18/19	Director of Finance / Trust External Auditors	For the Governors to formally receive the Trust Annual Report and Accounts.		\checkmark		
Draft Quality Accounts 18/19 for year and agree locally selected indicator	Medical Director / Trust External Auditors	For the Governors to formally receive the Trust Quality Account.		Quality Accounts		
Review and approval of Council policies as per review cycle	Head of Corporate Affairs	To ensure regular review and approval of policies.	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
Review Foundation Trust Constitution	Head of Corporate Affairs	To ensure regular review and approval of the Trust Constitution.	\checkmark	\checkmark		
Review of Register of Conflicts of interest for Governors	Head of Corporate Affairs	To note current register and review as appropriate	\checkmark			
Annual Senior Independent Director Led Meeting and plans for Chair's appraisal	Senior Independent Director	To provide an overview to the Governors and an opportunity to influence.			\checkmark	
Appointment of Non-Executive Director	Chair / Nomination and Remuneration Committee Members	To provide feedback to the CoG and seek approval of appointments.				
Annual Election Planning	Membership and Development Sub- Committee / Head of Corporate Affairs	To ensure involvement of Governors in the election process.	✓			
Annual review of the Membership (involvement) Strategy	Membership and Development Sub- Committee / Associate Director: Patient Experience	An opportunity to influence Trust plans.	\checkmark	\checkmark		

Helping people to be **the best they can be**

Page **2** of **2**

Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Council of Governors

At 3:00pm Wednesday 29th June 2021 Via Teams

Present	Rebecca Burke-	Chair/Senior Independent Director
	Sharples Brian Crouch	Lead Governor/ Service User/ Carer Governor
	Richard Agar	Public Governor, Wirral
	Sean Boyle	Partnership Governor, Staffside
	Rob Robertson	Service User/Carer Governor (part – leave 4pm)
In attendance	Sheena Cumiskey	Chief Executive
	Jane Woods	Deputy Director of People & Organisational
		Development for item 20/21/10
	Suzanne Christopher	Head of Corporate Affairs
	Samantha Scholes	Governance Officer (minutes)
	Mark Bate	Gatenby Sanderson
	Michelle Shirley	Gatenby Sanderson
Apologies	Ken Edwards	Staff Governor
	Helen Nellist	Public Governor, West

Ref	Title of item	Action	
	Meeting governance		
21/22/015	Welcome, apologies and quoracy Rebecca Burke-Sharples as the Chair opened the meeting and welcomed all present.		
	Apologies were received from Ken Edwards and Helen Nellist.		
	The meeting was confirmed to be quorate.		
21/22/016	Declarations of interest None.		
21/22/017	Meeting Guidelines These were noted.		
21/22/018	Minutes of the previous meeting The minutes of the meeting which took place on 9 th June 2021 were reviewed and agreed as an accurate record.		
21/22/019	Matters arising & action points		
	Action 21.22.10 had been completed.		
21/22/020	Business Cycle		
	The business cycle for 2020/21 was noted.		

Ref	Title of item	Action
21/22/021	Feedback from Board & Governors – Attributes of the New Chair	
	The Chair welcomed Michelle Shirley and Mark Bate from Gatenby Sanderson who both introduced themselves.	
	Following feedback from members of the Committee and conversations with Non-Executive Directors and the Chief Executive, plus feedback from Executive Directors, a number of key skills and attributes had been identified as important for the new Chair.	
	M Bate reflected on the importance of this appointment to lead the organisation forward and support the Board of Directors and Chief Executive.	
	It was important that the successful candidate shared and connected with the Trust's values and ethos, as well as an ability to connect with the wider community and key stakeholders. Supporting the Trust's approach to addressing health inequalities and continuing to build on the Trust's commitment to person centred care were also key factors for Committee members. The relationship of Chair and Chief Executive was equally important to lead the Board and ensure the best possible outcomes for our communities.	
	A key element of the role would be building partnerships both internally with the Board and Council of Governors and externally in a changing NHS landscape.	
	Careful consideration was given to the need for previous NHS experience. It was felt that in the current climate, a sound knowledge of the NHS would be beneficial. However, committee members also recognised the value of those with experience in the third sector, local authority or social care setting, whilst also having experience of a non-executive director role.	
	All feedback had included the need for the Chair to have a welcoming and inclusive approach including a desire to understand human factors and value the input of all partners in a Unitary Board. The role of Chair was pivotal to setting the culture of the organisation and supporting the Board of Directors to be at its best.	
	Of equal importance was the emerging ICS landscape and the context in which ensuring safe, effective care was vital. Additionally, systems working and collaboration was required, ensuring CWP has a strong voice and due influence at regional and national levels plus having social value and influence within Anchor institutions. The Chair would need the gravitas required to fulfil this.	
	In terms of the campaign, it was important to committee members that as diverse a search as possible was undertaken to encourage applications from a range of different groups, sectors and backgrounds.	
	The Committee noted the above.	
21/22/022	Job Description and Person Specification (Draft)	
	Further to the previous discussion, the committee took time to reflect on the Person Specification and Job Description.	

Ref	Title of item	Action
	Considerable discussion took place to consider the essential and desirable criteria, whilst also ensuring the attributes discussed above were drawn through accordingly.	
	The footprint of the Trust was also considered, taking into account the need to fully engage with and understand the different cultures. This also led to a discussion regarding the need to understand partnerships across the NHS.	
	Gatenby Sanderson provided guidance and support to committee members regarding the person specification and offered to consider the draft documents against the ICS Chairs Specification.	
	It was also agreed that S Christopher and S Cumiskey would work offline to update the job description in line with the discussions held and to better reflect the requirement for system working.	
	The Committee noted the above and agreed the proposed amendments to the Person Specification and Job Description.	
21/22/023	Additional Candidate Information	
	M Bate shared the current microsite, the purpose of which was for candidates to review relevant supporting information in one place.	
	The details would be updated to reflect current information about the Trust and would also include a welcome letter from the Senior Independent Director.	
	The Committee approved the proposal.	
21/22/024	Scope of Advertising Campaign	
	M Bate outlined the different approaches to the campaign. It was explained that the search undertaken by Gatenby Sanderson would form the main part of the campaign and was likely to attract the most interest.	
	It was also proposed that to widen the search, to encourage diversity and to reach Health and Social Care readers, the post be advertised within the Guardian Newspaper.	
	In addition, adverts would be posted online at www.womenonboards.co.uk, www.nedonboard.com & www.virtualnonexecs.com. Social media including LinkedIn focus opportunities, targeted adverts within geographical areas and posts on Twitter would also be utilised.	
	The Committee approved the proposals.	
21/22/025	Interview Arrangements	
	S Christopher set out the next dates in the process which would be:	
	19 August – longlisting meeting of the committee 2 September – shortlisting meeting of the committee 13 September – Stakeholder Panels 14 September – Formal Interviews	
	14 September – Formal Interviews21 September – Approval of appointment by the Council of Governors	
	Diary holds for all the dates would be sent to secure these for members.	SS

Ref	Title of item	Action
	Gatenby Sanderson proposed that the stakeholder panels be held virtually and the formal interviews face to face (socially distanced).	
	S Christopher added that between now and the 19 August meeting consideration would need to be given to the possible arrangements for the stakeholder panels and the formal interviews to ensure availability of wider Trust staff and members.	
	The Committee noted the dates.	
21/22/026	Any other business The Chair offered her thanks to Gatenby Sanderson, S Cumiskey, J Woods, S Christopher and S Scholes for their support.	
21/22/027	Review risk impact of items discussed No emerging risks were identified.	
21/22/028	Evaluate the effectiveness of the last meeting All agreed the meeting had been effective.	
21/22/029	Review the effectiveness of today's meeting https://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/CWPmeetingsurvey/	
Date, time a	nd venue of the next meeting:	



STANDARDISED HIGHLIGHT/ EXCEPTION REPORT

REPORT	DETAILS	
	matter of report:	TCG COVID-19 Update – September 2021
Report p	rovided by:	Alice Byrne
Date of r	eport:	21/09/2021
SUBJECT MATTER What is this report	pandemic, which nati and guidance to su operational objectives	Summarise the purpose of the report: a a summary of the key activities of the CWP response in relation to the COVID-19 ionally has been scaled back from level 4 to level 3. Ensuring leadership, expertise oport decisions and actions taken in accordance with the strategic, tactical and s meet the standards expected of the Trust's governance framework.
		uality, clinical, care, other risks that require escalation: note the following:
ESCALATION What do you need to escalate to the Committee?	 Updates from Cheshire and across CWP. Between Aug the Mill Street the time of th support being Lateral Flow has instructe community or for download Available dat of staff who a Covid-19 con The MVC at t centre will m booster prograre making p awaiting guid can comment Available dat and a 2nd rate TCG and SEC of limited bed 	 local system partners confirm a continued rise in community transmission across the I Wirral footprint. IPC measures and Covid secure practices continue to be employed pust to September 2021, the Trust has managed four Covid-19 outbreaks, one within the CAMHS team and also on Brackendale, Willow and Beech Ward. Brackendale, at is report, is the only outbreak that remains closed to admissions with IPC advice and g provided to staff as and when required. kits can no longer be accessed by staff via CWP collection points. The national team d that all NHS staff are required to order kits from the government site or from a collection point e.g. local pharmacy. The Covid-19 LFT reporting app is now available from the Android store and Apple store and is proving popular as a reporting route. a as of Wednesday 15th September 2021 indicates there are currently 115 members are currently off work with a Covid-19 related absence with 50 of those being from a firmed case. the Ellesmere Port Civic Way site formally closed on Friday 3rd September 2021. The ove to Churton house and will commence clinics as part of the nationally required ramme for CWP staff (awaiting guidance in order to commence). Starting Well team reparations to lead on the vaccination in schools of healthy 12-15 year olds, currently ance and legal documents and approval from the executive team to confirm the clinics ce. a as of Monday 13th September 2021 indicates a staff first vaccination rate of 94.0% of 87.4%. G colleagues supported with the declaration of a critical incident within SMH as a result capacity and staffing pressures. This incident was stood down and communicated to
		formally on Thursday 2 nd September.
	Decision mat	Other key matters to highlight:
	 work if havir disseminated Decision mac in place. This Approval give programme w the clinics car Following a c care workers 	de for the approval of a SOP regarding fully vaccinated staff being able to return to ng been in close contact with a covid positive individual. This has since been and continues to be utilised by a number of teams across the trust. The based on national guidance to healthcare settings to keep all current CWP guidance a message continues to be reiterated to staff on a weekly basis. en for the MVC team to commence the third phase of the Covid-19 vaccination which involves a booster vaccination for CWP staff. Awaiting detailed guidance before n commence. shange in legislation which will come into effect on the 11 th November, all health and s entering a CQC registered care home will be required to have been double Communication of this change has been distributed to all staff along with an



encouragement to receive two vacccinations for those who are yet to be vaccinated. A standard operating procedure (SOP) is being drafted.



5